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The Sacond Williama Block i1s significant as a
remnant of commercial architecture in Detroit
dating from the early 1870s, although two-thirds
of the building waa demoliahed following a 1973
fire in the south part of the atructure. It 1s
alao aignificant aa an examplie of the work of
Mortimer L. Smith, a renown Detroii architect
and painter. John Conatantine Williama, who
built thia commercial bullding to develop part
of hia real eatate holdinga in Detroit, waa a
mnember of one of the citv’'s wealthieat familiea
during the middle decadea of the nineteenth
century.
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PART I. HISTOGRICAL INFGRMATION

A. Physical History:
1. Date of erection: 1872-73.

2. Architect: Mortimer L. Smith (1840-97)
Mortimer L. Smith wsa born 1n 1840, the son of noted
Detroit architect Sheldon Smith. Mortimer Smith
learned architecture from hia father and formally
Joined his fsther’s practice i1n 18b1. Following his
fsther’s desth i1n 18648, Mortimer Smith continued to
practice srchitecture on hia own until 1883, when his
son, Frederick, joined sa s princlple partner in the
firm of Hortimer Smith & Son. Mortimer Smith waa s
noted painter of landecapesr in the late nineteenth
century and one oi Detroit’‘s most important architecta.

His most notable work, primarily completed in the 1870s
and 1880s, included aeveral elaborate residences for .
wealthy Detroit businessmen:; inatitutional work, :
including the Michigan State School for Boya (1871-74)
in Coldwater, the Stste House of Correction (1877).in
Ionia, Michigan. and the Art Loan Exhibition Building
{(1883,, Detroit’s first art museunm: and two Gothic-
style Detroit churchea, the Second Congregation Church
{1872) and the Woodward Avenue Baptist Church (1887).
Smith’s nmajor commercial buildings inciuded the Ferry
Building (1877), the Campau Building (1883), and the
first msior segment of the J.L. Hudaon Company '
department atore {(1891).

Following Mortimer Smith’s death in 1897, his son,
Frederick, took over the firm, which he combined with.
others in 1903 to form the psrtnerahip of Field,
Hinechman, =nd Smith. The lstter then becasme the firm
of Smith, Hinchmen & Gryils, which remains s mEJOr'
Detroit architectursl firm today. : C
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. 16~30 MONROE AVENUE (Commercial Buildina)

3. Original and subseguent owners: The following 1s an
incomplete chain of title to the land on wnich the
structure stands. Reference is to the Clerk’s Office
of the County of Wayne, Michigan.

i816 Deed, april 17, 1816, reccoraed in Liber 3, p. 80.
John and Sally Harvey to John R. Williamas.

1848 Deed, June 28, 1848, recorded in Liber 33,
p. 470. Mayor, Recorder, Aldermen, City
of Detrait, to John R. Williams.

1859 Report in Partition, August 3, 1859, recorded
in Liber 77, p. 236. Theodore Wiliiame et al
te John Conatantine Williama.

1859 Keport in Partition, August 3, 1859, recorded
in Liber 77, p. 236. Thecdore Williams et al
tc James Mott Williamsa.

. 1887 Warranty Deed, April S, 1887, recorded in Liber
: 309, p. l4. John Conatantine and Sarah
Willitams to Edward Kanter.

1905 Deed, May 19, 1905, recorded in Liber 609, p. 6i4.
Henry M. Duffield, Trustee for the estate of
James Mott Williama, to James E. Scripps.

1932 Quit Claim Deed, May 3, 1932, recorded in Liber
B 264909,
Gertrude Fried to Book-~Cad:illac Praperties, Inc.

1944 warranty Deed, June 8, 1944, recorded in Liber
7019, p. 581. Book-Cadillac Corporation to the
State of Michigan.

1973 Quit Claim Deed, December &, 1973, recorded in
Liber 18673, p. 24.
State of Michigan to TC & M Company.

1975 warranty Deed, January 24, 1975, recorded in
Liber 19014, p. 701l.
TC & M Caompany te the City of Detreoit.
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4. Builders, suppliers:
a. Builder: John Conatantine Williama (1817-92)

5. Original plans sand consatruction: A Detroit Tribune
article on Januarvy 26, 1872 esatimated the coat of
conatruction at Si00,000. Ne original architectural
plans have been found. The original building, which
occupiad the corner of Monroe and Michigan Avenues,
had a curved plan to fit the street pattern, and waa
more than twice the aize of the aurviving remnanc.

6. Altsrations and additions:

The kuilding has had no additions during 1ts history.
The southern two-thiras of the building was demol iahed
following a 1973 fire which destroyed the Family
{(Follies) Theater. Most of the building was guttea
and converted into the Famiiy Theater in 1909. City of
Detroit building permits show more than two dozen
alterations to the building between 1909 and 1958, with
virtually al)l of these consiating of slterationa to

. storefronta.

B. Historical Context:

John GConstantine Williams (1817-92) was one of seven sons
of John R. Williasms (1782-1854), tha fairat elected mayor
of Detroit (1822-25) and reputedly the wealthieat man in
Michigan at the time of his death in 1834, with moat of
his wealth in Detroit resl estate. In 1858, the Williama
childrsan inherited their father’s real estate, including
property on the asast side of Monroe Avenue betwaen
Michigan Avenue and Farmer. This was a prime commercial
location in the heart of Detroit’s business district.

John Constantine Williama erected & amall, five-story
commercial building (the Firat Williams Block) on the
property in 1859 and it is atill extant. Adjorning it, he
built a much larger office building, ths Second Williams
Block, in 1872-73. John Constantine Wiiliams maintained a
real eatate office in one of the two buiidings from 18359
until the mid-1880a. He moved to Florids for health
reasons in 1875, and lived there until hia death in 1892.

Tha original building has had a variety of owners and uses
over time, including retail atorea, oftices, several
hotelas, and a movie theater. It served ams an office

.- bullding through the 1870a, with retsil stores on the
ground floor. : '
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B. Historical Context (Continued):

This commercial building underwent a malor conversion in
1880-81, when it was tranaformed i1nto the Kirkwood Hotel,
alao known aa the Kirkwood Houae and the Kirkwood. The
proprietor of the new hotel, Commodore P. Howell, obtained
a ten-year lease on the buiiding from the ownera, John
Conatantine and J. Mott Williama, and apent 523,000 on
raenovationa and furnighings. The second floor i1ncluded
three dining rooma, a public drawing room, and seversti
suites. The three upper floora contained 123 gueat rooma,
including 23 suitea, all provided with ateam heat, and hot
and ¢old running water. The majority had baths as well.

Howell opéned the Kirkwood in Auguat 1881, but transferred
his lease to Harzell & Company in April 1882, The
building owners cloaed the hotel in July 1882 after the
lesaseg failed to oay their rent. John €, Williama
reopened the hotel in 1883 under hia own manadement.
- Lew B, Clark managed the hotel for Williams in 1885-1887.
. The Detroit City Directory of 1887 promoted the hotel as
. as "The New Kirkwood. Nelson and Little. Proprietors.™

John 0. Plank, ooerator of Plank’s Grand Hotel on Mackinac
Ialand, bought the Kirkwood in July 1888 and regoened 1t
as the Plankington Hotel in UOctober 1888. The Detroit
Tribune recorted that *“the place has been reritted, _
repaoered and refurnished throughout.” The venture was

a failure and Plank sold the hotel in November 1889 to Lew
B. Clark, a previous manager. The pbuilding was then known
aa the Kantor Building from 18391 through 1308. The upoer
fioora were used for generai office apace until the Hotel
Campua operated there in 1901-1905, followed by the Hotel
Fowlier in 1906-13909.

During the time span when ditfferent hotels occupied the
buiiding, the hotel lobbies and public areaa were
gituated on the second atory. The first story was
occupied by a variety of retail shopa selling men’s
clothing, hats, shoes, jewelry, and cigara. Moat of the
Second Williams Block waa gutted in 1909 and turned into
the Family Theater, a 934~seat facility deaigned by the
architect Fuller Claflin for vaudeville ahows. The Family
Theater was converted for movies in 13914 and ii remained
one of Petroit’s most popular theatera into the 1950a.
. The Chinese Imper:ial Reataurant opened in 1911 in the
. . . segment of the building adjacent to the Family Theater,
' changed 1its name 1n 1913 to the Chinese Reoublic

.Resataurant, and remained there until 1938,
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B. Historical Context {(Continued’:

This area of Detroit, ineluding Cadillac Sguare, Campus
Martius, and the adiacent sections of Monroe Avenue, was
the city’s first major theater district, with vaudeville
houses, nickelodecons., and movie palaces. inciuding several
desiqgned by ¢. Howard Crane and Albert Kahn. Al though
renamed The Follies in 1967, the Family Theater remained
open until it burnedg to the ground on July 28, 1973, in a
apecracular fire whiech destroved two~-thirds of the Second
Williama Block. A few shops remarned open on the ground
floor of the surviving aaction of the buirlding unt:l the
late 1970s, when the City of Detroit, which owned the
property, vacated the building and boarded it up.

PART II, ARCHITECTURAL IJINFORMATION

A. General Statement:

l. Architectural character: The Second Williams Block at

. 16-30 Monroe is significant as a remnant of mid-~1Sth
century commercial architecture in Detroit. Built in
the early 1870s, 1t is also significant as an example
of the work of renown architect and painter, Mortimer
L. Smith. He designed the structure in the Italianate
style which waeg faahionable from the 1850s through the
1870s. Historic photographs show that the surviving
seqgment is typlcal of the original building. The
ftalianate character appears in the use o0f a widely
overnanging cornice supported by large decorative
brackets: horizontal belit courses: tall narrow
windowa: and the combination of rectangular and
segmentalil- and full-arch window tops that are crowned
by bracketred hooda and pedimenta.

2. Condition of fabric: While the existing remnant of the
Monroe Avenue facade retains nearliy all of its original
detailing, the overalil atructural avatem of the '
building is in poor condition. 4 corner at the rear of
the building waa destroyed during the demoiition of the
agjacent atructure, and subaeguently the roof and
floors itn this area have collapsed. The roof haa _
suffered extensive damage becauge of water seepage from
the roof. ' S
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B. Deacription of Exterior:

i.

0w
[ )

Ovarall dimensions: Tha structure 1s fiva-stories tall,
plus basement. Tha aurviving segment of the originail
building is triangular in layout., with a right angle
formed at the northernmost corner, and mhaaaures 72 feat
wida and 80 feat daap. Tha principle facade, fronting
on Monrcoca, is dividad into thraa vertical sactions or
baya, each of which ceontsins three windows per floor
abova tha first story.

Foundat iona: Basement walls ara made of brick masonry.

Waii construction: Extarior walls ara masconry lcad-

bearing and congsist of common brick. The Monroe Avenue
facade iz sheathed in grey-colored cut sandstone
panela, each &-8" thick. The wail ornamentation on

thia facade consigts of belt courasea, which are located
above and below windows, guiiloches, varicua baa-relief
carvinga, and anh intricste caat-iron entablature. The
wall area betwsen windowa on the aecond and third
storiea 1ls more extenalvely ornamented than on the
fourth and fifth floora. The ahapea of window topa
vary by floor! rectangular for thoae on the second
floer, sagmental-arch on the third and fourth, and
full-roundad arch on the fifth floor, Pediments crown

. windows on the second, third and fourth storiea, while

brackated semi-circular hoods crown the fifth floor
windowa.

Structural system, framing: Wooden floor joista and
roof rafters bear on interior cast iron beams which, in
turn, are supperted by caat iron celumna and masonry
load-bearing extaricr watilsz.

Openings:
a. Doorways: Tha surviving Monroe Avanua frontage has
three entrances located in each of the bays. Thare

are two service doora at the rear of the building.

b. Windewa: Aaide from a few windowa at tha raar of
the atructure, virtually all feneatrstion appear on
the Monroe Averiue facade, Fenestration on the third
through fifth floors conaista of double-hung =ash
with one-over-one windows surrounded by wooden
frames, The second floor has aingle-hung single-
light pivot windowa with wooden ifranes.
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B. Deacrivption of Exterior:
6. Roof:

a. Shape, covering: The building has a flat roof with
a parapet, and ia moderately pltched to the rear,

b. Cornice., saves: The entire roef-line entablature is
made of cast iron. The overhsnging cornice, which
is broken intermittently by decorative triangular
projections, in turn ia supported by nine large
ornamented brackets. The trieze contains decorative
sguare panels separated by Aamall, plain bracketa and
the narrow architrave features fan-shaped ornaments.

C. Deacription of Interior:

1. Floor plans: See sketcn plans. Only the baaement,
firat, and second stories are acceasible because the
easternmost third of the building has collapsed, o
destroying the atairwell leading to the upper floora.

2. Stairways: The only remaining stairwsy, linking the
baasement, firsat, and second atories 182 situated at the
aouthwest corner of the building.

3. Decorative features and trim: The only large room
reaaonably intsct, located on the aecond tlicor,
includea two ceat iron coliumna with Icnic plaster
capitsla supporting a timber ceiling jorat with
decorative plaster cove moldings, This room was either
a dining room or & drawing room aerving the hotels that
occupired the building over the years.
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Feneral setting and orientation: The originai building
extended along Monroe Avenueé to the Campua Martius, and
then continued to Michigan Avenue, with a aubatantial
bend in the building facade to reflect the street
patterna. The Monroe Avenue-Campus Martiua facade waa
approximately 200 feet in liength, while thne Michigan
Avenue frontage waa about 80 feet. The portion of the
Second Williams Block remaining faces northweat and
overlooka Campua Martiua, one of Detroit’‘a firat

public sguares, named in 1788 aiter the more famous
square i1n Rone. Detroit’s Campus Martius waa the

site of & blockhouse in the late eighteentn century

and then gerved as a military parade ground before
becoming a public park in 1835. The Second Willianms
Block stands at the southernmost end of Monroe Avenue,
one of Detroit’s major comrmercial centers and
thoroughfares from the early nineteenth century to the
middle of the twentieth century.
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PART Iil. SOURCES OF INFOQRMATION

A,

B.

Architectural drawings: None have been found.

Historic Views: The beat views are found in the
collections of Manning Brothers, Commercial
Photographers. 26761 John R, Madison Heights, MI 48071,
Theae include views shot in 1908, 191e, 1933, 1936, and
1931. The Burton Hiatorical Collection of the Detroit
Public Liprary has overall views of Monroe Avenue,.
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